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Introduction

Landon School is a private, nonsectarian college preparatory school located in Bethesda,
Maryland. The school, founded in 1929, has been located at its extant campus since 1936, when
it purchased the extant campus, located at 6101 Wilson Lane, Bethesda, Maryland. The campus
is now approximately seventy acres in size and has seventeen buildings with construction dates
ranging from the mid-1800s to the 1990s.

As stated in the 2018 Landon Strategic Plan, “as current stewards and beneficiaries of a such a
beautiful campus, we must preserve, renew, and enhance, this space in ways that honor its legacy
as a place that is both inspiring and restorative.” EHT Traceries is working with cox graae + spack
architects to develop a Master Plan for the campus that preserves the campus history, but allows
for the school to move forward into their second century of quality education for boys.

The campus was constructed around the Lansdale Farmhouse and Barn, both of which date to
the nineteenth century. The C.W. Lansdale House and surrounding land was designated a local
historic site by the Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission in 1990. The remaining
campus, including the C.W. Lansdale House, was determined eligible for listing in the Maryland
Inventory of Historic Places, as well as the National Register of Historic Places, in 2002.

The following document summarizes the history and development of Landon School, surveys
the structures on campus as well as assesses their integrity, and presents preservation
recommendations for the Master Plan. EHT Traceries surveyed the campus in May, 2020, and
visited the Landon School Archives in June, 2020. Traceries conducted map, newspaper, and
photo research at the Montgomery County Historical Society, National Archives, and Library of
Congress, though due to Covid-19, only online documentation could be reviewed.
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Figure 1: Landon Campus highlighted in red. Google Maps, 2020, annotated by EHT Traceries.
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Historical Overview

Landon School

The Landon School (Figure 1) was originally founded by
Pauland Mary Lee Banfield in 1929 in Washington, DC. Paul
Banfield graduated from St. John’s College in Annapolis in
1923 and completed graduate work at George Washington
and Harvard Universities. Banfield originally wanted to
go to medical school to become a doctor like his father,
but the high cost of tuition prevented him from pursuing
that path. Instead, he accepted a teaching and coaching
position at Devitt Preparatory School in Washington, DCin
1924. That same year, Paul Landon Banfield and Mary Lee
Spring were married.!

After two years at Devitt, Banfield took a new position
at the Emerson Institute in Washington, DC, where he
taught, coached, and eventually became principal. At the
same time, Banfield was tutoring English students at the
Madeira School in suburban Virginia to make additional
money. The school’s founder and headmistress, Lucy
Madeira Wing, encouraged Banfield to start his own
school. In the spring of 1929, Paul Banfield spoke with  Figure 2: Paul and Mary Lee Banfield in
his wife, Mary Lee, about starting a new school and they ~ the 1960s. The Landon School Story.
decided to move ahead with the venture. Paul resigned

from Emerson, and together, the Banfields started their

work to establish Landon School.?

In 1929, the Banfields (Figure 2) were able to secure a two thousand dollar loan from Julius
Peyser, father of one of Banfields former students at Emerson.? Thanks to the loan, the Banfields
founded the Landon School for Boys in the four-story house located at 2131 Massachusetts
Avenue (Figure 3) that they were able to rent for $350 per month.* By the fall of 1929, the school
had twenty-three boys enrolled. On September 12, 1929, Landon School opened its doors as a day
and boarding school with eight boarding students and fourteen day students, as well as a faculty
of eight. Banfield set rigorous standards in the regimen that included reading, writing, arithmetic,

1 Thomas Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change: A Personal History of Landon School, (Bethesda, MD:
Landon School, 2004), 3; Clyde Wilson, The Landon School Story, (United States, 1968) 14.

2 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change 8-11.

3 Peyser initially agreed to lend Banfield $5,000 for the school: $2,000 once Banfield found a site, and the

remaining $3,000 several months later. Peyser came through with the initial $2,000, but due to the onset of the
Great Depression in October 1929, he was unable to lend the remaining amount. Dixon, 13-14.

4 In 1994, the building was purchased by the Republic of Estonia to serve as its embassy, which it remains
today.
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Figure 3: 2131 Massachusetts Avenue as
it appeared in the 1960s. Landon School
operated here for fie years from 1929-
1934. The Landon School Story.

and servants quarters (Torrey Hall)
previously owned by Hugh Reilly,
a resident of Georgetown. Jim
Andrews, whose son graduated
from Landon in 1932, agreed to
sell the property to the school for a
discounted $90,000. After acquiring
the estate (Figure 4) in the summer
of 1936, the new campus was ready
in time to welcome the Upper School
students in the fall for the academic
year. For the next four years, the
lower school continued to operate
at the MclLean estate until a new
building was constructed for them at
the Wilson Lane campus in 1940.”
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integrity, courage, sacrifice, and self-discipline. At the
end of the first month of the school year, he dismissed
six students for failing to meet those standards.®

Landon School operated at 2131 Massachusetts Avenue
for five years. Despite the Great Depression, enrollment
at the school continued to increase until it became clear
that additional space and facilities were needed. In 1934,
the school relocated to the thirty-five-acre McLean
estate located southeast of the intersection of Bradley
Boulevard and Wilson Lane in Bethesda, Maryland. Built
by Evalyn Walsh McLean for the initial purpose of being
a summer residence for her mother, Carrie Bell Reed
Walsh, but the house was never occupied by her nor
anyone else. Landon School was able to secure a ten
year lease for the property starting in June 1934.°

Less than two years after Landon moved to the McLean
Estate, the Andrews Estate, located on Wilson Lane
approximately one mile to the west, came on the
market for $150,000. The 62-acre estate contained both
the Lansdale farmhouse as well as a Tudor Revival style
house (the Andrews House), and associated garage

Figure 4: Aerial view of the Landon Campus as it appeared
during the early 1940s. Lansdale House, MHT Add. Doc.

5 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 14-15.

6 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 47-48; History Matters, LLC, “Horace Whittier Peaslee,” DC
Architects Directory, (Washington: DC HPO, 2011), 2.

7 “Landon School Buys Estate In Wilson Lane,” The Washington Post, 7 June 1936, R15.
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In addition to the Andrews Estate, the Banfields purchased additional property along the north
end of the campus in 1937 that was under threat of development. The Banfields purchased one
parcel from the developer, but they could not afford to buy all of the land. To save the property
from development and to provide a secondary access for Landon onto Bradley Boulevard, the
Banfields were able to persuade Milo and Tharon Perkins, who had two sons enrolled at the
school, to buy one part of the adjoining land, and Bob MacCartee, a teacher, to purchase the rest.
The Perkins built a house on their portion which they later sold to Landon, and the school was
later able to buy MacCartee’s segment.®

After moving to the Wilson Lane campus in 1936, Landon School used the Andrew’s House as
a dormitory and classroom space for Upper School students. The former garage and servants
quarters, known at Landon as Torrey Hall, initially housed additional classroom space and the
school library. The Banfields decided to make the Lansdale House their new residence, and
hired their friend, architect Horace W. Peaslee to restore the house and design an addition. The
renovation took three years to complete before the Banfields could move in to their new home
in 1939.

Horace Peaslee, who met the Banfields after enrolling his son at Landon School, was a notable
Washington, D.C. architect who became very close to the Banfields. In addition to renovating
the Lansdale House for the Banfields, Peaslee also oversaw renovations to the Andrews House
and Torrey Hall so that they could be adopted for academic use. Until the mid-1950s, Peaslee
designed many of the buildings that still stand on Landon’s Campus today, and he assisted
landscape architect Charles W. Eliot, I, with the development of a preliminary campus plan for
the Landon School.® Peaslee designed the Gymnasium, which was the first new building on the
campus, in 1939. He also designed the Lower School (1940), the Administration Building (1952),
the first three faculty houses that were built along the drive leading to Bradley Boulevard (1939-
1950), and the first wing of the Upper School’s Banfield Academic Center (1956) (See Figure 5
on page 6 for the map showing the development of the Landon School campus throughout the
twentieth century).

By 1940, a building for the Lower School was constructed on the west side of the Landon School
property, and the rest of the students were able to move to the campus at Wilson Lane. Landon
continued to grow over the next several years. In 1944, the Banfields established a nonprofit
corporation to own the Landon School, but they continued to remain active in the School’s daily
operations. Paul Banfield continued to serve as headmaster until he retired in 1969, but remained
on the Board of Trustees, serving as president of the nonprofit Landon School Corporation until
his death in 1978. Mary Lee Banfield served as secretary to the Landon Board of Trustees until
1977, but continued to remain active in life at Landon and resided at the Lansdale House until her

8 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 78; Wilson, The Landon School Story, 61-65.

9 It should be noted that the landscape architect was Charles W. Eliot, Il (1899-1993), grandson and
namesake of landscape architect Charles W. Eliot (1834-1926), and nephew of renowned landscape architect,
Charles Eliot (1859-1897).
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i 1. Lansdale House (1800s, 1 i
. ,1939) 10. Frank Parsons Rifle Range (1957)
Landon School - 2. Lansdale Barn (1800s) 11. Master’s House 1(1939)
Development Progression 3. Andrews House (c. 1911) 12. Master’s House 2 (1950)
4. Torrey Hall (c. 1911) 13. Master’s House 3 (1953)
5. Barton Athletic Center (1939, 1946, 1958, 1981)  14. Foster Maintenance Building (1965)
[ 1s00s [ 19405 [ 1970s 6. Perkins House (c. 1937) 15. Kiplinger House (1971)
< 191 1950 7. Wilson Building (1941, 1951) 16. Performing Arts Center (1989)
i . gs . . . 19905 - | 8. Administration Building (1952) 17. Middle School (1999)
K [J1930s [M 1960s [ 1990s | 9. Banfield Academic Center (1958, 1962, 1976)
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Figure 5: Development map of the Landon School Campus based on when the various buildings were constructed.
Base map of the campus plan provided by Cox, Graae, & Spack Architects. EHT Traceries.
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death in 1995.%°

The Landon School is an example of a private boys school that was established in Bethesda during
the 1930s. The preliminary campus plan for the campus was designed by Horace Peaslee, a
prominent Washington, DC architect. Peaslee sensitively incorporated two historic properties, the
Lansdale and Andrews houses, into the preliminary campus plan for the Landon School. Peaslee
also designed a number of modern school buildings on the property during the 1939-1960 period
that fit into the landscape and preserved the rural feel of the property.

Horace W. Peaslee

Horace Peaslee, born in 1884 in Malden Bridge, New
York, earned a bachelor’s in architecture and a minor in
landscape architecture from Cornell University in 1910.
In 1911, Peaslee moved to Washington, D.C. to work as a
landscape designer for the Office of Public Buildings and
Grounds where he designed parks and park structures,
including the Potomac Park Bathhouse and field house. In
1917, he was promoted to architect and was charged with
the design and construction of Meridian Hill Park. During
World War |, Peaslee joined the Army Engineer’s Corps,
where he designed temporary structures in the capital as
well as officers’ quarters at Camp Humphreys, now Fort
Belvoir, in Virginia.!*

In 1918, Peaslee (Figure 6) established his own private

practice in Washington, D.C., and designed a variety of

Figure 6: 1929 photograph of Horace buildings including private residences, schools, and gas

Peaslee. The Evening Star. stations. Peaslee was also a member of the American

Institute of Architects (AIA) for which he served four terms

as second vice president of the national organization,

and as president of the Washington, D.C. Chapter. He also led campaigns that resulted in the

establishment of the D.C. City Planning Commission and the adoption of the Shipstead-Luce Act,

which gave the Commission of Fine Arts authority to review the design of private buildings near
federal sites in the District.?

In addition to his building and landscape designs, Peaslee was also very active in restoration work.
Working with Fiske Kimball, Peaslee’s first major restoration was for the Dumbarton House in

10 “Paul Banfield, Founder, Head of Landon School,” The Washington Post, 7 June 1978, C10; “Mary Banfield,
Landon School Co-Founder, Dies,” The Washington Post, 14 February 1995, E4.

11 “Horace Whittier Peaslee,” DC Architects Directory.

12 “Horace Whittier Peaslee,” DC Architects Directory; “Horace Peaslee is Elected D.C. Architects’ President,”

The Evening Star, 12 January 1929.
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Georgetown in 1928. He also worked on the reconstruction of the original Maryland State House
located in St. Mary’s City, and the restoration of Belle Grove Plantation in Middletown, Virginia.
Outside of restoration, notable designs by Peaslee include Meridian Hill Park, the U.S. Marine
Corps War Memorial known commonly as the Iwo Jima Memorial, and the landscape designs for
President Eisenhower’s estate in Gettysburg, Pennsylvania.?

Peaslee served as architect for every new structure built at Landon School from the time it moved
to the former Andrews estate on Wilson Lane in 1936, until his death in 1959. Peaslee was initially
charged with renovating the Andrews House and Torrey Hall for academic use, and to renovate
and design an addition for the Lansdale House for the Banfields. The first new building that Peaslee
designed for Landon School was the Perkins Gymnasium, completed in 1939, now known as the
Barton Alumni Athletic Center. The next year, Peaslee designed the new building for the Lower
School located to the north of the gymnasium, and incorporated the design into the surrounding
landscape. He also designed several of the faculty houses built along the drive leading to Bradley
Boulevard, as well as the Administration Building.

Most of these buildings are visible on a 1938-1946 campus plan by Peaslee (Figure 7). This
concept plan was developed based on a preliminary plan prepared by landscape architect Charles
W. Eliot in collaboration with Peaslee. The plan laid out approximate locations and goals for
future development of the campus and created a vision for how buildings might be organized
conceptually. The conceptual plan created an academic core with a formalized arrangement of
buildings that took advantage of the character and nature of the site - but the plan was never fully
realized. The original 1939 Peaslee section of the gymnasium was the only building constructed in
the location shown on the plan. The siting of the 1941 section of the Lower School was shifted to
the east closer to the road. The remaining buildings in the proposed quad were ultimately sited
in modified locations and arrangements, that took away from the vision and concept. The actual
location of the Upper School’s Banfield Academic Center shifted east allowing for the Middle
School building that was not contemplated in the plan. The Administration Building, conceived as
part of the linear row of buildings, was constructed further to the south and it’s siting is slightly
misaligned with the Lower School and gymnasium. The preliminary campus plan also shows a
footprint for a dining hall that was intended to form part of the formal quad, though this structure
was never built. A modified Andrews House was to be on axis with the dining hall and Torrey Hall
was dramatically modified creating a “J” shaped building to align with the central spine of the
Banfield Academic Center. The preliminary campus plan also depicts seven houses along the drive
leading to Bradley Boulevard, though only four were built. Figure 10 depicts the campus plan
overlay showing extant buildings incorporated into the preliminary campus plan by Peaslee and
the planned buildings he designed that were actually constructed.

By the mid-1950s, the buildings along the west side of the Landon School property had been
completed. By 1956, Peaslee started working on the design for the new Upper School Building,
known as the Banfield Academic Center, with a location more to the east than was anticipated in
the concept plan. Work began on the building in 1957, and it was completed in time for the 1958-

13 “Horace Whittier Peaslee,” DC Architects Directory; Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 81-84.
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Figure 7: A copy of the 1938 preliminary campus plan created by landscape architect Charles W. Eliot with
the collaboration of architect Horace W. Peaslee. Lansdale House, MHT Add. Doc.
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1959 academic year. Almost immediately, Landon School started planning to add an addition to
the Upper School Building, with Peaslee to serve as architect once more. Before he could start on
the new wing, however, Horace Peaslee died of a heart attack on May 18, 1959 at the age of 74.*

Peaslee left a lasting mark on Landon School, serving as the architect for every building constructed
at the Wilson Lane campus from 1936 until 1959. Upon hearing of his death, both the American
Institute of Architects and the Commission of Fine Arts issued resolutions praising Peaslee’s
contributions to the field of architecture and the beautification of the Nations Capital.*

Designation and Significance

The C.W. Lansdale House and surrounding land was designated a local historic site by the
Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commissionin 1990 (see Figure 8 for the site boundaries
and features). The remaining campus, including the C.W. Lansdale House, was determined eligible
for listing in the Maryland Inventory of Historic Places, as well as the National Register of Historic

Places, in 2002.

Landon School
C.W. Lansdale House Local
| Historic Site

1. C.W. Lansdale House
2.Barn

| A. Approximate historic setting of
the C.W. Lansdale House historic .
site locally designated by the z =
| Montgomery County Historic = ‘,‘,\ i
Preservation Commission in 1990. | "i)‘ | )

L d ‘\5
“rrv.; A 3

Figure 8: The C.W. Lansdale House local nomination boundaries and significant viewsheds. EHT Traceries.

14 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 161-163.
15 “Horace Peaslee,” DC Architects Directory.
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C.W. Lansdale House

The C.W. Lansdale House is significant as an example of rural vernacular architecture typical of
mid-nineteenth century construction in Montgomery County. The local designation includes
11.77 acres, including the surrounding land, house, barns, and entrance from Wilson Lane. The
exterior of the farmhouse retains a high degree of integrity. The relationship of the farmhouse,
entrance road, and Wilson Lane are critical to the local landmark. Of particular significance
with the farmhouse and its surrounding buildings are the sight lines from Wilson Lane to the
farmhouse, which have remained unobscured since the mid-nineteenth century. This visual
relationship between the farmhouse and the road should be retained.

The Lansdale House and barn are also noted in the nomination as being contributing resources
to Landon School, for its contribution to the development of the school and incorporation into
Peaslee’s preliminary campus plan.

Landon School

Landon School was determined eligible for listing the National Register of Historic Places and
Maryland Inventory of Historic Sites under Criteria A and C in 2002 (see Figure 9 on the following
page for the map showing eligible and non-eligible buildings on the Landon School campus as
determined by the 2002 DOE). This documentation was prepared as part of compliance and
initial identification of historic resource studies for a Maryland State Highway road improvement
project on Wilson Lane. The school is significant for is long association with architect Horace
Peaslee whose architectural legacy is felt throughout the campus. Along with the new academic
buildings Peaslee designed, he also renovated the former houses that were already on the
campus, including the Lansdale House and Andrews House. Peaslee’s conceptual plan for the
school created a formal, academic quad and environment for boys, though never fully realized,
while preserving the rural feel and landscaping of the original properties.

Of the seventeen structures on the campus, thirteen are contributing resources to the eligible
historic district. Four of the buildings existed on the campus prior to Peaslee’s preliminary campus
plan: Lansdale House (mid-1800s), Lansdale Barn (mid-1800s), Andrews House (c. 1911), and
Torry Hall (c. 1911; former ancillary building to Andrews House). Five contributing resources were
constructed as part of Peaslee’s preliminary campus plan: Barton Athletic Center (1939 and 1946
portions), Master’s Houses 2 and 3 (1950; 1953), Wilson Building (Lower School; 1941, 1951),
and Banfield Academic Center (Upper School) (1958). One contributing resource was likely part
of Peaslee’s Plan but was cut off of the existing copy: Master’s House 1 (1939). Three contributing
resources are considered contributing as they were constructed prior to 1960, but are not depicted
on Peaslee’s preliminary campus plan: Perkins House (1937), Administration Building (1952), and
Parsons Rifle Range (1957). The following section describes each contributing resource and its
integrity. Overall, the campus retains a fair degree of integrity, though a number of the buildings
identified as contributing resources are of lesser significance.
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Figure 9: Map of the Landon School campus depicting both contributing and non-contributing buildings
within the National Register eligible C.W. Lansdale/Landon School Historic District as established by the 2002
Determination of Eligibility completed by History Matters. The potential district was determined eligible by the
Maryland Historical Trust. The shaded area in the lower portion of the map is the C.W. Lansdale House historic
site locally designated by the Montgomery County Historic Preservation Commission in 1990. The campus plan
base map was provided by cox graae, + spack architects. EHT Traceries.
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Landon School
1938 Peaslee Master Plan

I Buildings extant prior to Landon

Building constructed as part of
Peaslee’s Master Plan

Figure 10: Overlay of the buildings that were extant prior to Landon School and which buildings
part of Peaslee’s preliminary campus plan that were actually constructed. EHT Traceries.
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The following section outlines the history, significance, and integrity of each of the contributing
resources to the Landon School eligible historic district.

Lansdale House and Barn (Contributing Resources to DOE and Local Landmark)

The Lansdale House and barn (Figures 11
and 12) are located on Landon’s campus,
adjacent to the tree-lined drive leading
from the entrance off Wilson Lane. The
house is a two-story log and wood frame
house with clapboard siding. Rectangular in
plan, the house features a cross gable roof
and brick end chimneys. The central portion
of the house is a two-story log structure
that dates to the mid-nineteenth century.
The house was expanded on the east side
during the 1870s and 1890s. A historically
sensitive addition was added to the west
end of the house during the late 1930s (See
Figure 13 for the development map).

The Lansdale House is depicted, along with
the barn and stables, on Peaslee’s 1938
preliminary campus plan as they were
already extant when the school moved
to the site. The earliest part of the house
was likely built by Christopher W. Lansdale
during the mid-nineteenth century.
Lansdale built the house on a seventy-three
acre tract of land that he purchased in
1843.%% |n addition to the house, Lansdale
had numerous outbuildings constructed
on the property, including a kitchen, hen
house, smoke house, corn crib, stable, and
bank barn. Of these, only the bank barn
remains extant today.

Figure 11: The C.W. Lansdale House, also known as “The
Farmhouse”. EHT Traceries.

Figure 12: The bank barn that was part of the Lansdale
farm. EHT Traceries.

Lansdale acquired the property in October 1843 from the Holtzman heirs of Georgetown (Deed,
Liber BS 12, Folio 17, Montgomery County Land Records, 4 October 1843). The 1810, 1820, 1830,

16 Deed, BS Liber 12, Folio 17, October 1843, Montgomery County Land Records.
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and 1840 US Census Records for “Holtzman”
in Montgomery County, MD, DC, and other
surrounding counties were reviewed. There were
records for several individuals with the surname
Holtzman (John, Eli, Elizh, George, and Thomas)
in 1820, 1830, and 1840, but not for 1810. Each
of these individuals resided in Georgetown, and
there were no records of a Holtzman residing
| anywhere in Montgomery County during these
decades. Most likely, Holtzman owned the
property but did not have anyone, including
Figure 13: Image from the Landon Development  slaves, on the property in the first half of the
Map (Figure 4) which shows the Landon House  nineteenth century. The 1850 U.S. Census did
at right. The nineteenth century portion of the not note that Christopher Lansdale owned any
building is shaded red, while the 1930s addition . .

is shaded yellow. The red building at left is the slaves. There were no mention of slave dwellings
nineteenth century barn which is the only other  IN any of the nineteenth century sale notices for
building from the original farmstead. EHT Traceries. ~ the property, nor were there any extant slave
dwellings on the property by the time Landon
School acquired the it in 1936.

Over the course of a century, the Lansdale House evolved from a small log structure on a farmstead
to a four-part academic residence on a private school campus. Lansdale operated the farm for
several decades before expanding the house to six rooms by the 1870s. As part of the expansion,
he built an external chimney along the east side of the addition. In 1876, the house was sold to
Samuel E. Hill after Lansdale defaulted on his mortgage.” Over the next decade, the property
changed hands two more times before it was purchased by Margaret O’Brien in 1886. By 1890,
a second frame addition was built to enlarge the house to eight rooms, including a dining room,
second staircase, and a bedroom on the second floor. This addition was likely when the two-story
gallery porch was constructed on the south side.

In 1911, the farm was purchased by Hugh Reilly, a Georgetown resident. Reilly had the large
Tudor Revival style residence, now known as the Andrews House, constructed on the property
to the north of the Lansdale farmhouse. After selling the property to James N. Andrews in 1917,
the Lansdale house was used as a caretaker’s residence. The house and sixty-two-acre property
remained under the ownership of the Andrews’ until being sold to Paul and Mary Lee Banfield in
1936 to serve as the new Landon School campus.*®

After purchasing the estate, the Banfields hired their friend and architect, Horace Peaslee, to
design an addition and renovate the Lansdale House which was to serve as their residence.
Peaslee’s design involved building an addition at the west end of the existing house to include a

17 Equity No. 319, EBP Liber 9, Folio 93, 1876, Montgomery County Land Records.
18 Deed JA, Liber 4, Folio 361, November 1886, Montgomery County Land Records.
19 “Landon School Buys Estate In Wilson Lane,” The Washington Post, 7 June 1936, R15.
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kitchen on the first floor and a large bedroom and office on the second floor. The existing portion
of the house was restored at this time. The project also included the removal of a circular staircase
and fireplace located in the central hall, the enclosure of the first level of the south gallery porch,
and moving the front door. Work on the house took approximately three years before being
completed in1939.2° The Banfields moved into the house as soon as the work was completed. In
addition to serving as the Banfield’s residence, the house was also used to host social events for
faculty, students, and their parents, which included dinners, parties, and the Azalea festival. The
Banfields resided at the Lansdale House for the remainder of their lives.

Despite the construction of additional buildings and athletic fields at the Landon School Campus
throughout the remainder of the twentieth century, the Lansdale house largely retains its rural
setting. While the Athletic Center and Upper School are partially visible from the house, their
designs conform to the rolling and open landscape which allow the historic view shed from the
Lansdale House to remain relatively intact. Today, the house is used for faculty housing, as well as
meeting and office space.

The Lansdale House is considered a contributing resource within the National Register eligible C.W.
Lansdale House/Landon School Historic District as established by the DOE completed in 2002. The
Maryland Inventory of Historic Places form indicates that the house is locally significant under
National Register Criterion C as a nineteenth century example of rural vernacular architecture,
and one of the last such examples remaining in Montgomery County. It is also significant due to
its association with the Landon School, as the residence of Paul and Mary Lee Banfield, and for
the historically sensitive additions designed by Peaslee. Together with the contributing properties
on the Landon School campus, the property is significant under National Register Criterion A due
to its association with events that have made a contribution to local history as an example of a
country day school established in Bethesda by the 1930s, and its development throughout the
twentieth century.

The house was also individually designated
(1990) as a historic site by the Montgomery
County Historic Preservation Commission
forhavinghistoricaland culturalsignificance.
The designated site is composed of 11.77
acres which include the house and barn
as well as the entrance and approach from

Wilson Lane (Figure 8).

Figure 14: Undated drawing of the Lansdale House.
Miller, Landon School Archives.

20 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 75-79; Liz Buxton, “C.W. Lansdale House/Landon School,”
Determination of Eligibility Form, Maryland Historical Trust, 2002, 2-3.
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Andrews House (Contributing
Resource to DOE)

The Andrews House (Figure 15) is
located at the center of Landon’s
campus, north of the athletic fields
and adjacent to the Upper and Middle
Schools. It was already standing on
the site when Peaslee developed the
preliminary campus plan in 1938. The
house is a two-and-one-half story
Tudor Revival style residence built c.
Figure 15: The Andrews House, today used as the Headmasters 1911 (Figure 16). Built of stone masonry
Office and Communications Office. EHT Traceries. and wood frame construction, the
building’s asymmetrical composition,
fenestration, multiple gables, stone
detailing, and false decorative half-timbering support the stylistic expression of the Tudor Revival
Style associated with the early twentieth century. A majority of these features remain intact,
though the interior plan has been altered for various uses by Landon School.

The house was owned by the Andrews family, whose son, James Andrews, was a graduate of
Landon School. The Andrews’ purchased the property from Georgetown resident Hugh Reilly.
Reilly immigrated to the United States from Ireland, and purchased the estate in 1911. He
established a profitable paint business in Georgetown and built the twenty-room, three-story
Tudor Revival house and corresponding garage and servant’s quarters, today’s Andrews House
and Torrey Hall. Several years later, however, Reilly was suffering financially and had to sell his
estate to Andrews in 1917.%

Andrews owned the estate for nearly two
decades before deciding to put it on the market
in 1936, four years after his son graduated from
Landon. The 62.5 acre property included the large
stone house, garage and servants quarters, the
Lansdale House and large bank barn, and several
smaller outbuildings for the asking price of
$150,000. The Banfields arranged a meeting with
Andrews to express their interest in purchasing
the estate for use as the new location for Landon

School. Andrews agreed to sell the property to  Figure 16: Image from the Landon Development

the school for the reduced price of $90,000.% Map (Figure 4) showing the Andrews House located
near the center of the Landon School campus. EHT
Traceries.

21 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 75-79.

22 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 75-79.
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After acquiring the estate, the Banfields hired their friend and architect, Horace Peaslee, to
renovate the Andrews House, then known as the Dormitory, to be used as dorm and classroom
space. Part of the renovation included converting the formal living room into the masters’ lounge
for teachers who boarded at the school.?® During the first several years that the Landon School
was located at Wilson Lane, the Andrews House also housed a small library and the dining room
for the Upper School and faculty.?* The second and third floors of the Andrews House were used as
living quarters for staff beginning in 1971 when the school ended the boarding program. Wilkes,
Faulkner Architects designed the renovation of the third-floor apartments.?® The Andrews House
currently serves as the Headmaster’s Office and the Communications Office.

The C.W. Lansdale House/Landon School DOE determined that the Andrews House is a contributing
resource within the eligible historic district as it is located on a prominent site on the campus.
The building’s Tudor Revival architecture and location at the center of the campus creates a focal

point from many vantage points.

Torrey Hall (Contributing Resource to DOE)

Torrey Hall is located approximately 150
feet northwest of the Andrews House.
Also designed in the Tudor Revival Style,
Torrey Hall (Figure 17) was designed
to serve as an ancillary building to the
Andrews House. Torrey Hall is also
constructed of stone masonry and
wood frame construction with the same
Tudor Revival features and detailing, but
is less ornate than the Andrews House.
Torrey Hall retains many of its original
features, but has been altered by the [
construction of several additionsduring L~ =

the mid-twentieth century that match Figure 17: Today, Torrey Hall houses the Alumni Office,
the original architecture but alter the  Development Office, Parent Programs, and School Store. EHT
building in form and plan. The interior  Traceries.

of the building has also been altered
multiple times.

Torrey Hall was built during the c. 1911 to serve as a garage and servant’s quarters when the
property was owned by Hugh Reilly. In 1917, the estate was sold to the Andrews family who owned
it for nearly two decades before selling the property to the Banfields in 1936 to serve as the new
site for Landon School. After the property was purchased, Peaslee was charged with renovating

23 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 75-79.
24 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 81.
25 Buxton, “C.W. Lansdale House/Landon School,” DOE Form, MHT, 2.
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the former garage and servants quarters to
accommodate classrooms for the Upper School
students as well as the school library.

In 1946, the building was enlarged to provide
additional classroom space (Figure 18). Following
the completion of the addition, the building was
| dedicated as Torrey Hall in honor of former faculty
member, Frederic C. Torrey, who retired several
years prior. Torrey was asked to join the faculty at
Landon School in 1931 while he was working at
an Episcopal Academy in Philadelphia. Accepting
the position, Torrey worked as a mathematics
and foreign language teacher, and remained at
Landon until his retirement in 1942.%¢

Figure 18: Image from the Landon Development
Map showing Torrey Hall. The building is situated
between the Andrews House, Middle School, and
Performing Arts Center. EHT Traceries.

Torrey Hall remained the primary Upper School Building until the 1960s. Since that time, it has
been occupied by various offices and departments of the school which has resulted int the interior
plan of the building being altered several times. Torrey Hall currently houses the school store,
parents’ programs, the alumni office, Lower School art, and the development office.

Torrey Hall is considered a contributing resource to the eligible C.W. Lansdale House/Landon
School historic district. The building was one of four already standing on the property when it was
acquired by Landon School in 1936, all four of which were incorporated into the 1938 concept plan
by Peaslee and Eliot. However, the 1938 plan depicts Torrey Hall with a large addition constructed
along its east side that created a “J” shaped building to align with Banfield Academic Center;
this was never realized. Originally used as the garage and servant’s quarters, the multiple uses
of the building has required extensive modifications over the years to accommodate dormitory,
classroom, and office uses. Of the original four buildings on the site, Torrey Hall has seen the
most change and it’s plan has been most altered. Architecturally, while the building continues the
Tudor Revival styling of the Andrews House, Torrey Hall lacks the presence and grace associated
with the stately residence. Modifications have altered the structure and diminished its integrity.

Athletic Center (Contributing Resource to DOE)

The athletic center, located on the west side of the Landon Campus between the Lansdale House
and the Lower School, had its start as a gymnasium completed in 1939. The gym (Figure 21) was
built of brick masonry construction with a double-pitch gable roof clad in slate. Both sides of the
gym feature five large bays to illuminate the interior. Each of these contains a tripartite window
featuring nine-over-nine double-hung sash windows surmounted by a six light fixed window.
Throughout the twentieth century, several additions to the gymnasium were built, all of which

26 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 27-28; Wilson, The Landon School Story, 77.
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feature exterior brick cladding.

Construction of a gymnasium
was firstauthorizedin November
1938 by the school’s Board of
Trustees, with Horace Peaslee
hired to design the new building.
To fund the construction of the
gymnasium, Landon School
started a fundraising campaign.

The largest contribution for
Figure 19: An undated Preliminary sketch for the Gymnasium construction of the building
completed by Horace Peaslee. DOE, Maryland Historical Trust.

came from Milo and Theron
Perkins, who were close friends
with the Banfields.?” Additional funding came from the parents of other Landon students, as well
as a 10,000 loan from Acacia Mutual Life Insurance Company in Washington, D.C., and an $85,000
loan from Suburban Investment Trust in Silver Spring, Maryland.

The building was dedicated in 1939 as the Milo Randolph Perkins, Junior, Activities Building, in
memory the Perkins’ son, Randy, a Landon student and athlete who lost his life in a tragic railroad
accident the previous summer. Paul Banfield played a direct role in the design of the building,
frequently meeting with and writing to Peaslee about various aspects of the design, including the
interior finishes, lighting, telephones, and components of the floor plan.® The gymnasium was
completed in 1939 and opened to students in time for the new academic year that fall.

Several years later, when it was decided that a
Middle School should be created at Landon,
a north wing to the existing gymnasium was
built between 1945 and 1946. This first addition
contained a science laboratory, four classrooms,
and an office for the appointed head of the newly
created Middle School. A second addition was
first proposedin 1957 to provide additional locker
space. Peaslee designed the new wing, built by
E. A. Baker, and construction was completed by
January 1958.%

Figure 20: Image from the Landon Development
As the student body continued to grow, so didthe ~ Map showing Athletic Center. The original portion

need for additional athletic facilities. By the mid-  of the building (1939) is shaded yellow. The

subsequent additions were completed in 1946,

1970s, it was clear that the Perkins Gymnasium )
1958, and 1981. EHT Traceries.

27 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 85.
28 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 88; Landon Archives.
29 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 160-161.
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Figure 21: The Barton Alumni Athletic Center. The original 1939 Perkins Gymnasium is visible in the center of the
photo with the slate roof. EHT Traceries

was outgrown, and the new addition was to include a second gym on the main floor. The addition
was to be built along the south side of the existing building. The architect chosen to design the
new wing was John Parker. Completed in 1981 (see Figure 20 for the development map), the
new wing was dedicated in honor of Ed Barton, Varsity Coach and Athletic Director from 1949-
1970, and named the T. Edward Barton Alumni Sports Center. The large gymnasium that was
built as part of the addition was named the Riddleberger gymnasium after headmaster Hugh
Riddleberger who replaced Paul Banfield in 1970.%°

The Barton Alumni Sports Center complex is a contributing resource within the National Register
eligible C.W. Lansdale House/Landon School historic district. The complex, specifically the 1939
Perkins Gymnasium, is significant to the history of Landon School as the first new building
constructed on campus and the first designed by Horace Peaslee.

Perkins House (Contributing Resource to DOE)

The Perkins House, located near the
northern boundary of the Landon
property, was built during the late 1930s.
The two-story, five bay house (Figure 22)
was built of wood frame construction clad
in wood siding. Designed in the Colonial
Revival style, the residence is a side gable
house with brick end chimneys. A two
story rear wing is located on the west
side of the house.

Figure 22: The Perkins House. Today, it is a Landon School
faculty residence. The Landon School Story.

The Perkins house was the home of Milo

30 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 330-334.
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and Tharon Perkins, friends of Paul and Mary
Lee Banfield. The Perkins, parents of two boys
that attended Landon School, had originally
purchased the two-and-one-half acres adjacent
to the Landon School Property in 1937 to
protect it from future development. They built
a two-story, five-bay frame house with brick end
chimneys and a two-story wing located on the
west side (Figure 23). In the 1940s, the Perkins
established a garden containing 10,000 azaleas
of more than 600 varieties. The garden is a living
memorial to their two sons, Randy and George,  Figure 23: Image from the Landon Development

who died in 1938 and 1943, respectively.* Map showing the Perkins House located near the
northern boundary of the school campus. EHT

Traceries.

Milo Perkins was originally appointed assistant

secretary of Agriculture under Henry Wallace at

the Department of Agriculture, and he remained with the Department until the 1950s. In 1954,
Perkins retired from the Department and moved to Arizona. Perkins notified Banfield of his plans
and offered the house and gardens to the school for $60,000, far below the true value. Purchase
of the Perkins House alleviated the crowding of the Upper School in Torrey Hall. The interior of
the house was converted to classroom space used for Upper School English classes starting in the
fall of 1954. The first year after purchasing the Perkins property, Landon School held its inaugural
Azalea Festival, a tradition which continues to this day.?> Today, the Perkins House serves as a
faculty residence.

Because the Perkins House was on a piece of property that was not owned by the school in 1938,
it does not appear on the 1938 preliminary campus plan. The Perkins House did play an important
role in protecting the Landon Campus from encroaching development, and to its expansion
and development when it was finally acquired by Landon in the 1950s. The Perkins House is a
contributing resource to the C.W. Lansdale House/Landon School district as an example of the
school evolution and development in the mid-twentieth century.

Lower School (Wilson Building) (Contributing Resource to DOE)

The Lower School is located along the west side of the Landon School property between the
Athletic Center and Administration Building. It is a two-story brick masonry building with a flat
roof built into a hillside. Both stories are exposed on the downslope west elevation while only the
upper story is exposed on the east side primary elevation. The building features metal windows
including bay windows separated by entry bays along the primary elevation (Figure 24). Above
the entry bays are panels with swag details that are out of character with the rest of the building.
Prior to the completion of the new Lower School building in the fall of 1940, grades three through

31 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 78, 84-86.
32 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 142-143.
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six of the Lower School were
still operating at the former
Walsh estate in Bethesda.
When the Andrews estate was
purchased for Landon School in
1936, there were not enough
existing buildings for both the
Upper and Lower Schools, so
the decision was made to move
the upper school to the Wilson
Lane Campus and to keep the
Lower School at the Walsh
estate until additional facilities
could be built. Completion of

Figure 24: Lower School Building. EHT Traceries. a new Lower School building
meant that the entire student

body could be together on the same campus
once more.

Horace Peaslee, architect for Landon, designed
the new building for the Lower School. On July
10, 1940, Landon contracted with Morrison
Brothers, based out of Bethesda, to construct the
building. Work began soon thereafter, and by the
following autumn, the new building opened its
doors to students of the Lower School. Designed
to be incorporated into its site on hillside along  Figure 25: The lower school as it appears on the
the west side of the campus, the building Landon Development map. The original building
appeared to sink into the landscape. The design  (ingreen) was built in 1940. The wing at the south
. . . end is a 1951 addition. EHT Traceries.
incorporated bay windows along the entire east

side as well as a flat rooftop.

As completed, the Lower School building contained classrooms, a kitchen, a 200 seat dining room,
and offices for various departments. Each classroom was designed to be octagonal in shape and
included bay windows to allow views onto the fields of the Landon Campus. The dining room was
also used as an assembly room and theater for several years.** Just one year later, in 1941, three
more classrooms and a large art room were added to increase the capacity of the building.?® An
additional two classrooms and an art room were added in 1951 (see Figure 25).3¢ The art room
became the music room when the art department was transferred to the Randy Perkins Memorial

33 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 89-90.

34 “New Building At Landon Opens Sept. 25,” The Washington Post, 8 September 1940, L9.
35 “Landon School Adds 3 New Classrooms,” The Washington Post, 7 September 1941, F5.
36 Wilson, The Landon School Story, 76-77.
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gymnasium. These changes made it possible for the Lower School to have double classes in each
grade.

At the 1964 retirement ceremony of Clyde Wilson, a sixth grade teacher and head of the Lower
School for many years, the Lower School building was dedicated in his honor as the Wilson
Building, which continues to be used by the Lower School today.

The Wilson Building is considered a contributing resource within the National Register eligible
C.W. Lansdale House/Landon School Historic District due to its significance to the history of
Landon School and as one of the earliest academic building designed by Peaslee.

Administration Building (Contributing Resource to DOE)

The Administration Building (Figure 26) is located in the northwest section of the Landon School
property adjacent to the circular drive across from the Lower School. The brick masonry building
features a slate clad hipped roof, and is two-stories with an exposed basement on the north and
west sides. The primary elevation is three bays wide and features metal sash windows. A single
large bay window projects from the east elevation while the north elevation features a projecting
entry bay.

As constructed the Administration Building’s location differed significantly from the 1938 concept
plan in form and orientation (Figure 27). The construction of an Administration Building was first
proposed by Paul Banfield on January 29, 1951. The school secured a loan of $175,000 from Acacia

Figure 27: Part of the 1938 preliminary campus
plan showing a rectangular building surrounded
by trees in the approximate location where the
administration was built in 1952. A portion of the

Figure 26: The Administration Building today houses lower school is visible in the lower left hand corner.
the Admissions and Business Office. EHT Traceries. EHT Traceries.
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Mutual Life Insurance Company that allowed it
to discharge a 1945 loan.?” Peaslee again served
as architect for the design of the Administration
Building. Construction commenced in 1951, and
the building was completed in 1952 (Figure 28).3

Originally, the building housed offices for the
headmaster and his secretary, the registrar, as
well as various secretaries and other assistants.
Prior to the construction of the Administration
Building, Banfields headmaster office was
located in the Lower School building, but with ~ Figure 28: The  Administration Building as it
the construction of the new building he gained a ~ 2PP$a" On th? Landon. Development map. The

i o i outdoor amphitheater is located to the west of
larger office. In addition to a headmaster’s office, the building, and a circular drive is located to the
the first floor of the Administration Building also  immediate south. EHT Traceries.
housed an assistant headmaster’s office - first
occupied by Bill Triplett - as well as secretary
officesand aroom for aswitchboard and operator. The upper floor housed the financial department
and an apartment for a teacher and their spouse. The bottom floor housed a lounge with double
doors located on the west side of the building which opened onto a terrace overlooking the
amphitheater. The lounge was used by faculty and staff as well as sixth grade students.

Today, the Administration Building no longer holds the office of the headmaster which is now
located in the Andrews House. The space is now occupied by both the Office of Admissions and
the Business Office.

The Administration Building is a contributing resource within the National Register eligible C.W.
Lansdale House/Landon School historic district as one of the first buildings to be executed as part
of Peaslee’s preliminary campus plan, and the first administration building to be constructed.

Upper School (Banfield Academic Center) (Contributing Resource to DOE)

The upper school (see Figure 30 on page 26) is located at the northeast end of the Landon Campus,
adjacent to the Middle School and Andrews House. The U-shaped three-story brick building has
a slate-clad hipped roof. It features a variety of metal sash, casement, and awning windows, as
well as three bay windows on its primary (west) elevation, similar to those on the Lower School’s
Wilson Building. Originally conceived on the 1938 plan as a “U-shaped” building the initial 1958
portion of the building was completed as a rectangular building and its location shifted further
to the east significantly changing the arrangement of buildings on the concept plan. The wings
constructed in 1962 and 1976 completed the U-shape of the building.

37 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 141.
38 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 140.
39 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 141.
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Figure 29: An undated rendering showing the 1962 addition to the Banfield Academic Center. The addition
was designed by Mills, Petticord, and Mills. The original 1958 portion of the building designed by Peaslee is in
the right-hand portion of the image. Landon School Archives.

Construction of a new academic building for the Upper School was first proposed by Banfield in
1956. The site chosen for the building was a hill that sloped downward toward the road leading
to Bradley Boulevard. Peaslee designed the new two-story classroom building, and construction
started during the spring of 1957. The building was completed in time for the 1958-1959 school
year.” As originally built, the Banfield Academic Center housed a language laboratory, large study
hall, picture gallery, school store, offices and conference rooms, and classrooms for the upper and
middle schools.

Soon after the first phase of the building was completed, additions to the building were proposed,
including adding a third story and an ell-shaped wing extending off the north end of the initial
building to house a new main
library for Landon School. The
third floor addition to the Banfield
Academic Center was to house
the Keith Science laboratories and
science classrooms while the lower
floor of the new wing housed a
book store and large study hall. The
most prominent features of the
new wing, however, was the Wiley
Buchanan Library and a trustees
lounge for the purpose of holding
board and faculty meetings. The
new wing also included new offices

forthe assistantheadmasterandhis  Eigure 30: The Upper School, known as the Banfield Academic
secretary, as well as an art gallery. Center. EHT Traceries.

40 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 141.
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Horace Peaslee, who designed the original building , died before he was able to complete the
designs for the new addition. Landon School sought for several years to find a new architect to
complete the design. By January 1962, the firm of Mills, Petticord, and Mills was chosen as architect
and E.A. Baker was chosen as builder. Construction finally began that year. The cornerstone for the
new addition was laid on March 2, 1962, and the
building was completed in the fall of that year
(Figure 29). The building was officially dedicated
in April 1963, and the entire complex, including
the original two floors of the building as well as
the newly completed addition, was named the
Banfield Academic Center in honor of both Paul
and Mary Lee Banfield.*

In 1974, construction began on a third phase of
the Banfield Academic Center. The new wing was
to built at the south end of the original Upper

. o . Figure 31: The Banfield Academic Center of
School building, giving the entire complex a e Upper School as it appears on the Landon

U-shaped plan. The upper and middle schools  Development map. The building was constructed
had grown to a point that the building was no  in three phases completed in 1958, 1962, and

1976. To the left is the Middle School completed

longer adequate to meet their needs, so the new ,
in 1999. EHT Traceries.

wing was built to house the Middle School.*

The school selected architect and former Landon student John Parker to design the new wing.
Parker’s designs for the new wing were approved in December 1974. Landon chose Jesse Dustin
& Son as the contractor to construct the new wing. The school initiated a fundraising campaign
to cover the cost of the construction, and quickly secured a pledge of $200,000 from the DeWitt
Wallace Fund. Wallace, founder of Reader’s Digest, was well acquainted with the school, as he
provided a yearly grant for their scholarship fund. Due to his gift for the construction of the new
wing, it was dedicated in his honor as the Wallace Wing. Construction started in the fall of 1975,
and the building was dedicated in September 1976.4

Despite its later additions (Figure 31), the Banfield Academic Center is considered a contributing
building for the potential C.W. Lansdale House/Landon School historic district. It is particularly
significant to the history of Landon School as the last building designed by Peaslee that was built
on the school campus.

Frank Parsons Rifle Range (Contributing Resource to DOE)

Located in the woods to the west of the rear parking lot of the Athletic Building is the Frank
Parsons Rifle Range (Figure 32). It was built in an area designated as the “Lower School Woods

41 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 161-164.
42 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 259-260.
43 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 260-266.
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Playground” on the Peaslee’s concept plan. Built while Peaslee was still serving as architect for
the Landon School, the range does not appear to have been contemplated on the concept plan.
A one-story flat roof structure, the rifle
range is a simple building of concrete block
construction. The building features a small
projecting gabled entry wing.

Efforts to have arifle range built at the school
began as early as 1947, but efforts didn’t
start to culminate until 1955 when plans for
an indoor range were announced. Planning
wasn’t finalized until October 1956, and
constructed was able to commence once
the necessary funding was raised. Leo Butler
donated the services of his workers and the
equipment needed to prepare the site and
build the range.

Figure 32: The Frank Parsons Rifle Range. EHT Traceries.

Completed in 1957 (See Figure 33), the indoor rifle range was constructed to be used by both
Landon School students as well as summer camp
attendees. The rifle range was built thanks to a
generous donation from Olympic marksman Frank
Parsons, father of Landon students Doug and Dave
Parsons. Parsons was a national rifle champion who
was instrumental in stimulating interest in building
the range. Unfortunately, Parsons died in 1957 prior
to the completion of the range, but it was finished
later that year by his friends and dedicated in his
honor. The rifle range is still in use today.*

Figure 33: The Frank Parsons Rifle Range was

built down the hill from the rear of the athletic . .
center parking lot. To the north of the range is The Frank Parsons rifle range was determined by

the Lower School. EHT Traceries. the 2002 DOE to be a contributing resource within
the potential historic district. However, the building
was not designed by Horace Peaslee, nor does it’s

architecture reflect the commonalities of Peaslee’s buildings on the campus.

Faculty Houses (Contributing Resources to DOE)

In 1937, Paul Banfield acquired land outside the northeast boundary of the school to prevent its
development, and then sold it to the school to be incorporated into its campus. This allowed the
school to establish a secondary entrance to the via a paved drive from Bradley Boulevard. The

44 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 67; Wilson, The Landon School Story, 79.
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land on either side of the drive was then used to build several Master’s houses for teachers and
administrators working at Landon School.

The first house (Figure 34) was built in
1939 along the southeast side of the
drive. Designed by Peaslee, the two-story,
three-bay, side gable house was designed
by Horace Peaslee in the Colonial Revival
style. The wood frame house was originally
clad in wood siding that has since been
replaced with vinyl. A brick chimney
located along the west side is abutted by a
two-story wing attached to the southwest
corner of the house The east side features
Figure 34: The first of the master’s houses designed by ~ an attached one-car garage with a single
Peaslee, built in 1939. EHT Traceries. story above which connects to the first
floor of the main block of the house.

The second master’s house was built in 1950 directly across from the first. Also designed in the
Colonial Revival style, the two-story cross gable house is of wood frame construction with brick
veneer siding painted white. The main entrance is located on the east side adjacent to an attached
one-story single-car garage. Along the west side is a one-story gabled frame addition connected
to the house by a hyphen with a secondary entrance. Also designed by Peaslee, the house was
built by Morrison Brothers, Inc. of Bethesda, who also built several other buildings on the Landon
campus.

The third master’s house designed by Peaslee was built in 1953 by the E. A. Baker Company to the
southwest of the first house (see Figure 35 for the development map). Like the others, the house
was designed in the Colonial Revival style. The two-story, side gable house is five bays wide and
features a central entrance and a chimney on the
west end. It was built of wood frame construction
clad in a red brick veneer.

All three of these faculty houses are contributing
resources to the CW. Lansdale House/Landon
School historic district as they were all designed by
Peaslee. Houses two and three were built in their
approximate locations as established in Peaslee’s
preliminary campus plan. House one was likely
depicted as well but was cut off on the copy of
the plan. Peaslee pulled the residentially-scaled  Figure 35: The original three master’s houses
Colonial Revival style homes away from the main  were designed by Horace Peaslee. The first was

campus plan, to give the faculty housing a sense of built in 1939 while the second two were built
. during the 1950s. EHT Traceries.
a suburban setting.
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A fourth master’s house was built c. 2003 directly across from the third master’s house. This two-
story side gable house was designed in the Colonial Revival style, and is clad in a red brick veneer.
Built following the completion of the 2002 DOE, the house is non-contributing since it was built
after 1970 and is therefore less than fifty years old.

Foster Maintenance Building (Noncontributing Resource to DOE)

The Foster Maintenance Building was constructed in 1965 adjacent to the bank barn and Lansdale
House. The one-story side gable building is of concrete block and wood frame construction. The
gable extends approximately three feet over the primary elevation. The primary elevation is eight
bays wide, composed of alternating
entry and window bays which feature
metal awning windows.

Built to house the various paint,
carpentry, and metal working shops
necessary to keep the buildings and
grounds in shape, it also housed
a lounge and showers for the
maintenance workers. The building
(see Figures 36 and 37) is named for the
Foster brothers: William (Bill), Charlie,
Sam, and Wilmer. Wilmer Foster was
the first of the brothers to be hired
at Landon in 1937 as foreman of the
grounds crew. The other brothers

applied several years later, with Wilmer serving ;i 1’ \
as gardener, Charlie on the maintenance crew,
and Sam as general handyman.® _—\

For their dedication to Landon School, and il
the many years in which they were there, the

b
maintenance building that the Foster Brothers o S
built themselves was dedicated in their honor as 4
the Foster Maintenance Building. Today, it bears J"/'

a plaque dedicated to “William Jackson Foster,
his Brothers and Associates”. It still serves as the
maintenance building today.

Figure 36: Foster Maintenance Building. EHT Traceries.

Figure 37: The Foster Brothers Maintenance
Building was constructed directly north of the
A building is depicted on Peaslee’s 1938 plan  barn from the Lansdale farm. EHT Traceries

45 Wilson, The Landon School Story, 79; Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 64-65.
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in the approximate location of the Foster Maintenance Building. This was likely a stable or
structure associated with the farm - already extant when purchased by Landon - the building was
demolished and replaced by the maintenance building. The Foster Maintenance Building is listed
as non-contributing since it was built after 1960.

Kiplinger House (Noncontributing Resource to DOE)

The Kiplinger House was built in 1971 near the north boundary of the Landon School campus, to
the north of Torrey Hall and west of the Perkins House. Designed in the Colonial Revival style, the
five-bay, side gable house is clad in a brick veneer. A brick end chimney is located on the east side
of the house, and a single story gable wing is located on the west side. The house features six-
over-six and nine-over-nine windows
with faux paneled shutters.

The house (Figure 38) was built to serve
astheresidence forthe new Headmaster
after Paul Banfield retired and stepped
down from the position in 1969. In
July that year, Landon selected Hugh
Riddleberger as the new headmaster
to replace Banfield. Riddleberger was
a former headmaster of Grosse Point
University School in Detroit and was
a director of the Cleveland Council of
Independent Schools.*®

Figure 38: Kiplinger House, the residence of the Landon
Funds for the construction of the house  School Headmaster. EHT Traceries.

were raised by increasing an existing trust on
the school property. Landon selected builder-
architect Thomas D. Rixey, head of the Thomas
D. Rixey Development Corporation, to design
and build the new house. Construction began in
March, 1971, and was completed in September
that year during Riddleberger’s second year as
headmaster (see Figure 39 for the development
map).*’ Riddleberger remained headmaster until
his retirement in 1981. Kiplinger House remains

Figure 39: The Kiplinger House was built near the )
northern boundary of the Landon School Campus, the residence of the Landon School headmaster

directly north of the parking lot to the north of  today.

Torrey Hall. EHT Traceries.

46 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 236.
47 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 238-242.
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The C.W. Lansdale House/Landon School DOE completed in 2002 considers the Kiplinger House
(listed in the DOE as the Headmaster’s House) to be non-contributing to a potential National

Register district since it was built after 1960.

Performing Arts Center and Landon Middle School (Noncontributing Resources to DOE)

The Benjamin M. Mondzac Performing Arts Center (Figure 40), designed by John Parker, was built
in 1989. Designed in the Colonial Revival style, the building features a three part composition
with a two-story central section flanked by single-story wings. A single-story projection houses
the main entrance which is comprised of three sets of double doors with side lights and transom:s.
The building features double-hung sash windows and a hipped roof.

The need for a performing arts or activities building was discussed as early as 1983. The building
was designed to house both a new dining room to replace the one in the Lower School’s Wilson
Building, as well as an auditorium. Construction started in October 1987, with the Jesse Dustin
Company serving as contractor. The Performing Arts Center, which opened in April 1989 (see
Figure 41 for the development map), was named after Benjamin M. Mondzac, a former Landon
student who graduated in 1986 and died from brain cancer that August, just weeks before he was
set to start his freshman year at Columbia University.*

Landon Middle School and Gallery, built in 1999, was designed by Tappe Associates, Inc. of
Boston. This modern, three-story building (Figure 42) is clad in red brick and stone siding with a
slate clad hipped roof. The site selected for the new building was north of the Andrews House,
situated between the Upper School and Torrey Hall to form a quadrangle between the buildings.
Work on the Middle School started that fall, and the new building was completed by September
the following year (Figure 43).

Figure 41: The Performing Arts Center

s A i as it appears on the Development Map
1989. Itis located in the northwest section of the Landon of Landon School. At the bottom right is

School campus. EHT Traceries.

Figure 40: The Mondzac Performing Arts Center was built in

Torrey Hall. EHT Traceries.

48 Dixon, Courage, Commitment & Change, 379-392.

G-36



Attachment G
EHT Traceries Landon School

Page 33 of 38 October 9, 2020

Figure 42: The Middle School, the most recent Figure 43: The Performing Arts Center is located
building to be constructed on the Landon Campus. between the Upper School, at right, and Torrey
EHT Traceries. Hall, at bottom left. EHT Traceries.

The Mondzac Performing Arts Center and the Middle School were constructed after 1960, they are
considered to be non-contributing resources within the eligible National Register historic district.
The Middle School was constructed close to the site of a proposed dining hall as represented on

the 1938 plan although the dining hall was never constructed.
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Conclusion and Recommendations

The proposed Master Plan for Landon School in Bethesda, Maryland calls for the demolition of
one contributing resource to the National Register eligible historic district, Torrey Hall. The other
twelve contributing resources would be retained. Torrey Hall was built as an ancillary building to
the Andrews House, both constructed c. 1911. The far more significant main Andrews House will
be moved to preserve the early twentieth century manor house. The other eleven contributing
resources to the eligible historic district would be retained in place.

Peaslee’s preliminary 1938-1946 campus plan depicts the development progress of the campus
up to that time. The plan itself states that it was developed from a “Preliminary Plan” created
in 1938. The fact that the plan was based on a preliminary design and that it was never fully
implemented indicate that it was likely a conceptual plan to guide the development of the school
rather than a formal guiding document. For the most part the plan envisioned a formal, academic
quad that aligned with the character and nature of the site. This concept was never realized
and the actual location and siting of many of the buildings eroded the formal, arrangement of
academic buildings. Figure 44.

The concepts in the plan are good starting points for a new vision for the Landon School. Peaslee
was already deviating from his plan as early as 1952 with his design for the Administration Building.
The construction of the Frank Parsons Rifle Range in 1957 (while not a Peaslee design, it was built
while he was still serving as architect for Landon) was not contemplated as part of the concept
plan. Much of Peaslee’s guidance on the development of the school ended with his death, and
in the ensuing decades, new construction and alterations occurred outside of Peaslee’s vision.
The campus also expanded through the acquisition of additional land — which allowed for the
construction of the Kiplinger House and the Performing Arts Center. Therefore, while Peaslee’s
preliminary campus plan was important to the early development of the Landon School campus,
it was never strictly adhered to by Peaslee or the school, nor was it ever fully implemented as
designed.

The new Master Plan proposes to move the Andrew’s House to the southwest to allow for the
construction of the new Upper School on a new main quad. The new Upper School would turn
to the southwest, opening up this new quad to create a visual connection with the Lower School.
Demolishing Torrey Hall would potentially be considered an adverse effect; however, its removal
would allow for a strong visual connection between the Upper and Lower School Buildings. The
new proposal of a more formalized quad does align with the initial spirit of the Peaslee’ concept.

Additionally, the new plan retains all of the locally designated Lansdale House, barn, and
surrounding grounds. Most importantly, it preserves the connection with the entrance road and
the visual connection between the Lansdale House and Wilson Lane by retaining playing fields in
the southern portion of the campus.

The Master Plan will have no adverse effects on the local landmark, but will potentially have an
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EXIStI n g C 0 n d Itl O n S OVG rI ay |:| - Masterplan Building Locations

A copy of the 1938 Master Plan created by landscape architect Charles W. Eliot with
the collaboration of architect Horace W Peaslee. _ Eyicti oo .
Lansdale House, MHT Add. Doc. |:| Existing Building Locations

Figure 44: Existing conditions and preliminary campus plan overlay. cgs architects.
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adverse effect that reflects the proposed demolition of Torrey Hall. Torrey Hall was constructed
at the same time as the Andrew’s House and its original use was closely aligned with the original
residential use of the property. The DOE documents the history and significance of Landon
establishing a school at the site as part of the reasons the campus has been determined eligible.
Torrey Hall, within the context of the Landon campus, has less significance than the Andrew’s
House because it was designed as an ancillary structure and the building has been modified
extensively with additions that were needed to accommodate educational and administrative
uses.
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May 14, 2021

Ms. Katie Wagner, P.E., PTOE

Gorove Slade — Transportation Planners and Engineers
1140 Connecticut Ave NW, Suite 600

Washington, DC 20036

Dear Ms. Wagner:

Thank you for the opportunity to review the traffic impact study (TIS), dated March 26, 2021,
for the proposed implementation of The Landon School Campus Master Plan -
20APMO034XX in Montgomery County, Maryland. @ The Maryland Department of
Transportation State Highway Administration (MDOT SHA) has reviewed the TIS and we are
pleased to respond.

e The proposed addition to the Landon School campus is to provide for an additional 116,237
square feet of space totaling 361,100 square feet. This will accommodate another 27 students
during the school year for a total of 707 students. A modification to the Special Exception
approved in 2002 would allow the school to provide for 1,200 campers during the summer.

e Both the Wilson Lane and Bradley Boulevard gates are proposed to remain but be modified to
enhance accessibility for vehicles and school buses.

e The key studied intersections for the development are:

Wilson Lane & Whittier Boulevard

MD 191 (Bradley Boulevard) & Huntington Parkway

MD 191 (Bradley Boulevard) & Burdette Road

MD 191 (Bradley Boulevard) & Wilson Lane

MD 188 (Wilson Lane) & Marbury Road/Landon School Driveway

MD 191 (Bradley Boulevard) & Landon School Driveway

O O O O O O

Based on the information provided, please address the following comments in a point-by-point
response:

General Comments

MDOT SHA supports dedication of right-of-way along Wilson Lane (MD 188) to MDOT SHA to
satisfy the Bicycle Master Plan requirements for a separated bikeway along MD 188. We concur
with dedicating a width of 40 feet between the property line and right-of-way centerline in support
of the master-planned future right-of-way of 80 feet.

H-1
9300 Kenilworth Avenue, Greenbelt, MD 20770 | 410.545.0400 | 1.800.206.0770 | Maryland Relay TTY 800.735.2258 | roads.maryland.gov



Attachment H
Ms. Katie Wagner
SHA Tracking No.: 20APMO034XX
Page 2 of 3
May 14, 2021

District 3 Traffic Comments (Provided by Alvin Powell):

We have no further comments to offer and recommend approval subject to completion of revisions
requested by other reviewing agencies.

Travel Forecasting & Analysis Division (TEAD) Comments (Provided by Scott Holcomb):

TFAD has no further comments at this time.

The SHA concurs with the report findings for this project as currently proposed and will not require
the submission of any additional traffic analyses. However, an access permit will be required for
all construction within the SHA right of way. Please provide an Electronic Submission containing
the proposed improvement plans (including a set of hydraulic plans and computations) and all
supporting documentation to the Access Management Division. For electronic submissions create
an account with our online system https://mdotsha.force.com/accesspermit. Please reference the
SHA tracking number on any future submissions. Please keep in mind that you can view the
reviewer and project status via SHA Access Management Division web page at
https://www.roads.maryland.gov/mdotsha/pages/amd.aspx. Please note, if this project has not
obtained an SHA access permit and begun construction of the required improvements within five
(5) years of this approval, extension of the permit shall be subject to the submission of an updated
traffic impact analysis in order for SHA to determine whether the proposed improvements remain
valid or if additional improvements will be required of the development. If you have any questions,
or require additional information, please contact Mr. Kwesi Woodroffe at 301-513-7347, by using
our toll free number (in Maryland only) at 1-800-749-0737 (x7347), or via email at
kwoodroffe@mdot.maryland.gov or shaamdpermits@mdot.maryland.gov.

Sincerely,

H—

for Erica Rigby
District Engineer

ER/cmh

cc:

Ms. Natasha Aidoo, MDOT SHA — District 3 Traffic

Ms. Rola Daher, MDOT SHA — TFAD

Mr. Derek Gunn, MDOT SHA — Acting Deputy District Engineer
Mr. Scott Holcomb, MDOT SHA — TFAD
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Ms. Katie Mencarini, Montgomery County Planning Department

Mr. Alvin Powell, MDOT SHA — District 3 Traffic

Mr. Aaron Smith, AMT Engineering

Mr. Deepak Somarajan, Montgomery County Department of Transportation
Mr. Kwesi Woodroffe, MDOT SHA — District 3 Regional Engineer
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Ms. Katherine Mencarini, Planner Coordinator
Downcounty Planning Division

The Maryland-National Capital

Park & Planning Commission

2425 Reedie Drive, 13th floor,

Wheaton, MD 20902

RE: Special Exception Plan No. S686D
Landon School Letter

Ms. Mencarini:

We have completed our review of the Special Exception Plan uploaded to eplans on March 30,
2021. We recommend approval for the plan based on the following comments:

All Planning Board Opinions relating to this plan or any subsequent revision, project plans or site
plans should be submitted to the Montgomery County Department of Permitting Services (MCDPS) in the
package for record plats, storm drain, grading or paving plans, or application for access permit. Include
this letter and all other correspondence from this department.

Significant Plan Review Comment

1. Wilson Lane (MD-188): Per Bicycle Master Plan: Separated Bikeway-Sidepath (north side). We
recommend that the applicant widen the existing sidewalk along the frontage to a minimum 10-ft

wide sidepath.
2. Bradley Blvd (MD-191): Per Bicycle Master Plan: Separated Bikeway-Sidepath (north side) and
striped bikelane along the south. The applicant should comply with the Bicycle Master Plan.

3. We defer to Maryland State Highway Administration (MDSHA) for access and improvements along
Wilson Lane (MD-188) and Bradley Blvd (MD-191).

Office of the Director
101 Monroe Street 10" Floor - Rockville Maryland 20850 - 240-777-7170 - 240-777-7178 FAX

www.montgomerycountymd.gov
Located one block west of the Rockville Metro Station
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4. Whittier Blvd: Based on Bethesda Chevy Chase Master Plan, it is classified as a Primary
Roadway (P-9) with 70-ft minimum right-of-way width with 36-ft pavement width. Show the existing
right-of-way on the plan. If the right-of-way is less than 70-ft, we recommend that Maryland-
National Capital Park and Planning Commission (M-NCPPC) require the applicant to dedicate the
necessary right-of-way to comply with the master plan by deed of dedication prior to the building
permit.

Merrick Road: This is a privately maintained roadway. We defer to M-NCPPC for any comments.

6. There are existing bus stops on Wilson Lane (MD-188) and Bradley Blvd (MD-191).

e The bus stop on Wilson Lane (MD-188) was recently improved and any impacts to this will
be the applicant’s responsibility to fix it.

e The bus stop on Bradley Blvd (MD-191) needs an 8-feet x 5-feet concrete landing pad with
curb ramp on both sides of entrance to the school. At or before the MDSHA right-of-way
permit, please coordinate with Mr. Kwesi Woodroffe of MDSHA District-3 Access
Management to coordinate improvements for the existing bus stop as mentioned. Mr.
Woodroffe may be contacted at kwoodroffe@mdot.maryland.gov or at 301-513-7347.

7. Design all access points and alleys to be at-grade with the sidewalk, dropping down to street
level between the sidewalk and roadway.
8. Storm Drain Study: The storm drain drainage area map uploaded on eplans dated March 30,
2021, is INCOMPLETE.
a. Since the applicant is adding a large amount of impervious area which we believe portions

or the entire site is draining to the existing culvert of 54-inch, and/or an existing storm
drain pipe between the existing lots 8 & 9 (per Plat#21110). Prior to the approval of the
stormwater management plan by MCDPS Water Resources Section, submit a storm drain
study for the portion of the subject site draining to the Montgomery County public storm
drain system for the approval by MCDPS Right-of-Way Section. The applicant will be
responsible for any existing downstream storm drain system improvements required by
MCDPS per the review of the storm drain analysis.
b. MDSHA approval required for the portion of the site draining to the public storm drain

system maintained by MDSHA.

9. Sight Distance: We defer to MDSHA for sight distance approval for the access from Wilson Lane

(MD-188) and Bradley Blvd (MD-191).
10. We recommend applicant to underground the existing utilities along their street frontages.
11. The Traffic Impact Study (TIS) letter was issued by MCDOT on January 25, 2021.
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Thank you for the opportunity to review this preliminary plan. If you have any questions or
comments regarding this letter, please contact Deepak Somarajan, our Development Review Team
Engineer for this project at deepak.somarajan@montgomerycountymd.gov or (240) 777-2194.

Sincerely,

DW Oemardatun

Deepak Somarajan, Engineer Il
Development Review
Office of Transportation Policy

SharePoint\teams\DOT\Director’s Office\Development Review\Deepak\Special Exception\S686D-Landon School\Letter\ S686D-
Landon School Ltr

cc: Sharepoint Correspondence Folder FY’ 21

cc-e:  Aaron Smith AMT Engineering
Patrick L O’Neil Lerch, Early & Brewer, Chtd.
Kwesi Woodroffe MDSHA District 3
Crystal Hughes MDSHA District 3
Derek Baumgardner MC OZAH
Atiq Panjshiri MCDPS RWPR
Sam Farhadi MCDPS RWPR
Mark Etheridge MCDPS WRM
Andrew Kohler MCDPS WRM
Wayne Miller MCDOT DTS
Rebecca Torma MCDOT OTP
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Ms. Katherine Mencarini, Planner Coordinator
Downcounty Planning Division
The Maryland-National Capital
Park & Planning Commission
2425 Reedie Drive, 13th floor,
Wheaton, MD 20902

RE: Landon School

Traffic Impact Study Review

Dear Ms. Mencarini:

We have completed our review of the revised Local Area Transportation Review and Transportation
Policy Area Review (LATR) report dated November 30, 2020, prepared by Gorove Slade. Total
development evaluated by the analysis includes:

e increasing the square footage of development on the site to 361,100 SF with a future enroliment of
707 students and an enroliment of 1,200 summer camp participants.

General Comment:

The traffic counts were based on the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (M-
NCPPC)-Memorandum dated May 7, 2020- “Briefing on Temporary Policy for Traffic Counts Collection and
Transportation Impact Study Submission During COVID-19 Pandemic” as it is lower than the available
historical data (see attached document with this letter). We recommend that the higher of the traffic counts-
traffic counts taken during the pandemic per the memorandum or available historic counts be used. If the
historical traffic counts have not been completed in three years, then we recommend that an adjustment
factor be added to the counts done during the pandemic. We believe that traffic will go back to pre-pandemic
levels.

Office of the Director
101 Monroe Street 10" Floor - Rockville Maryland 20850 - 240-777-7170 - 240-777-7178 FAX

www.montgomerycountymd.gov
Located one block west of the Rockville Metro Station
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Based on the TIS report dated November 30, 2020, we offer the following comments:

Adequacy Determination

The study indicates that the proposed development generates more than 50-peak hour person trips
for motor vehicles; therefore, this test is required. The pedestrian, bicycle and transit adequacy
tests are not required since the development generates less than 50-peak hour trips for each
adequacy.

Motor Vehicle System Adequacy

The LATR test for the Bethesda/Chevy Chase policy area uses the Critical lane Volume (CLV)
Congestion standard of 1600 and Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) with an average vehicle delay
standard of 80 seconds per vehicle. Since the subject site is in the Orange Policy Area, HCM
analysis is required.

The consultant studied four (4) intersections and two existing access points {one access on Wilson
Lane (MD-188) and the other access on Bradley Blvd (MD-191)} to the site.

Based on the attached traffic counts in the report (completed in accordance with the MNCPPC-
Memorandum dated May 7, 2020 report), consultants conclude that all the study intersections
would continue to operate within the HCM delay standard of 80 seconds/vehicle.

Pedestrian and Bicycle Impact Statement

The consultant provided an evaluation of the pedestrian, bicycle and transit infrastructure for the
studied intersections and roads. The report evaluated crosswalks, pedestrian crossing timing at
each signalized intersection, location of sidewalks, pedestrian signal heads, streetlight information,
accessible ramps and bus stops indicating their adequacy.

SUMMARY

We agree that the traffic study was done in compliance with the MNCPPC-Memorandum dated
May 7, 2020. We determined that the counts are significantly lower than the historical data for the
intersections. We believe that the consultant should have used historical counts when available or
added an adjustment factor to be closer to pre-pandemic counts.

We defer to the Maryland State Highway Administration (MDSHA) for comments regarding
intersections maintained by MDSHA jurisdiction.
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Thank you for the opportunity to review this report. If you have any questions or comments regarding
this letter, please contact me for this project, at deepak.somarajan@montgomerycountymd.gov or at
(240) 777-2194.

Sincerely,

DW Oemandatin

Deepak Somarajan, Engineer I
Development Review Team
Office of Transportation Policy

SharePoint/transportation/directors office/development review/Deepak/TIS/ Landon School\Letter\ Landon School-TIS Letter

Attachment(s): Available Historic Traffic Counts at the study intersections.

cc: SharePoint\Correspondence FY-21

cc-e: Katie Wagner GoroveSlade
Kwesi Woodroffe MDSHA District 3
Atiq Panjshiri MCDPS
Sam Farhadi MCDPS
Mark Terry MCDOT DTEO
John Hoobler MCDOT DTEO
Kamal Hamud MCDOT DTEO
Vincent Ho MCDOT DTEO
Rebecca Torma MCDOT OTP
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Intersection Details for Id: 442

Intersection Analysis

Detailed Information for Intersection Id: 442

Intersection Id:

442

Street Name:

WHITTIER BLV and WILSON LA (MD

188)
Date: Thursday, 10/25/2018
Company: STS Consulting
Split Phasing? North/South: N
Split Phasing? East/West: N

Attachment H

Lane Configuration Diagram for Traffic Count Id: 11254
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Attachment H

Department of Permitting Services
Fire Department Access and Water Supply Comments

DATE:  08-Jun-21

TO: Aaron Smith
A Morton Thomas

FROM: Marie LaBaw

RE: Landon School - campus modifications: new building, building expansion, & relocated
S-686-D

PLAN APPROVED

1. Review based only upon information contained on the plan submitted 08-Jun-21 Review and approval does not cover
unsatisfactory installation resulting from errors, omissions, or failure to clearly indicate conditions on this plan.

2. Correction of unsatisfactory installation will be required upon inspection and service of notice of violation to a party
responsible for the property.

*** Existing campus - new building, relocated building, & building addition ***

*¥% See notes for performance based review of the Andrew's House relocation *¥%
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HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

Marc Elrich Robert K. Sutton
County Executive Chair
May 19, 2021

Mr. Casey Anderson

Chair, Montgomery County Planning Board
2425 Reedie Drive, 14" Floor

Wheaton, Maryland 20902

RE: Landon School Special Exception Amendment No. S-686-D

Dear Chairman Anderson and Members of the Planning Board:

On April 28", the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) heard a discussion item regarding Special
Exception Amendment No. S-686-D at Landon School (6101 Wilson Lane, Bethesda). Landon School
encompasses approximately 70 acres and contains seventeen buildings dating from the mid-1800s to the 1990s.
Only an 11.77-acre wedge-shaped section at the south end of the property is included in the County’s Master Plan
for Historic Preservation (Master Plan Site # #35/016-000A, C.W. Lansdale House/Landon School). However, the
entire property was determined eligible for the National Register of Historic Places in 2002.

In 2020, the applicants contracted with EHT Traceries to survey the buildings on the property, assess their
integrity, and present historic preservation recommendations for the school’s campus master plan, which will
preserve the campus’ history while allowing the school to continue to grow. The resulting Historical Summary and
Evaluation report found that the following structures contribute to the National Register-eligible property: the
Andrews House; Athletic Center; Perkins House; Lower School (Wilson Building); Administration Building
(Hendricks Building); Upper School (Banfield Academic Center); Torrey Hall; and the Frank Parsons Rifle Range.

While the work items related to the Special Exception Amendment are largely outside the 11.77-acre
Master Plan-designated environmental setting, the applicant submitted its proposal to the HPC for an informational
review, conducting due diligence. The items within the Environmental Setting that required HPC approval of a
HAWP, specifically alterations to the guardhouse, fencing, and entrance drive, have already been approved by the
Commission on March 24™, At our April 28" Hearing, the applicants were requesting a review of the relocation of
the Andrews House (c. 1911) and demolition of the Torey House (c. 1911). As noted above, both buildings were
found to contribute to the National Register-eligible property.

EHT Traceries’ Historical Summary and Evaluation report found that the relocation of the Andrews House
will have No Adverse Effect on the National Register-eligible property, because the building will remain intact in
the same general location and orientation. Regarding the demolition of Torrey Hall, the report found that the
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HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

Marc Elrich Robert K. Sutton
County Executive Chair

building has been significantly modified and its integrity has been diminished. The report concluded that the
demolition of Torrey Hall, could potentially create an Adverse Effect, however, the report further states that the
building’s removal “would allow for a strong visual connection between the Upper and Lower School Buildings.”
An adverse effect refers to the diminishment of a property's integrity, with respect to its location, design, setting,
materials, workmanship, feeling, or association. The term is applied by federal agency officials, in consultation
with the Maryland State Historic Preservation Officer. This determination of eligibility and the associated adverse
affects were the result of a federally sponsored project on nearby Wilson Lane.

This finding is perhaps more consistent with the Horace Peaslee’s (campus building architect through the
mid-1950s) original vision for the campus. The report adds that Torey Hall is less historically significant than the
Andrew’s House, as “it was designed as an ancillary structure and the building has been modified extensively with
additions that were needed to accommodate educational and administrative uses.”

Despite EHT Traceries’ findings, the applicants indicated that they were willing to consider reasonable
creative measures to mitigate any potential adverse effects caused by the relocation of the Andrews House and/or
demolition of the Torey House. Because the property is an educational institution (both historically and currently),
staff and the HPC recommended mitigation that incorporates educational opportunities with historic preservation
efforts. This could be a multidisciplinary approach involving students with varying background and interests and
supervision from educators and experienced professionals. (Example: Students with an interest in architecture or
historic preservation could create measured drawings and document the conditions of the buildings, those with an
interest in photography could photograph the buildings, those with an interest in history could conduct further
research into the history of the buildings, and those with an interest in design or museum studies could create
exhibits or markers, utilizing the created and/or collected information. Additionally, students with an interest in
videography could document the entire project, and those with an interest in web design or communications could
create a blog or website to share the project with the public.)

The HPC is providing this letter in support of the Special Exception Amendment ahead of the applicants’
hearing this summer, and we are requesting that our recommendations regarding creative mitigation be considered
in the Planning Board’s findings.

Very Sincerely,

Robert K. Sutton, Chair
Historic Preservation Commission

cc. HPC Members
Patrick O’Neil; Lerch, Early & Brewer
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From: Mencarini, Katherine
To: "Paul Rashid"
Cc: "Kraut, Aaron"; "cindy.gibson@montgomerycountymd.gov"; Kronenberg, Robert; Dickel, Stephanie; Hisel-McCoy,
Elza; "Seth Goldberg"; "Q"Neil, Patrick L."; "Johnson, Nana"
Subject: RE: Landon School - Process Question
Date: Tuesday, June 15, 2021 9:26:00 AM
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Mr. Rashid,

| apologize | realize | made a mistake in the email | sent to you last week. The Planning Department does
not mail notices for Public Hearings in which the Planning Board makes a recommendation to another
reviewing body. In this case the Planning Board will be making a recommendation to the Hearing
Examiner, which operates out of the Office of Zoning and Administrative Hearings. For clarity I've edited
the previous email below.

The Office of Zoning and Administrative Hearings (OZAH) has their own procedures and protocols for
providing public notice of their public hearings. | have included Nana Johnson of OZAH on this email if
you have questions about noticing and participation in their public hearings.

| apologize for any confusion. If you have questions about the Planning Board’s public hearing process,
please let me know.

Sincerely,
Katie

Katherine (Katie) Mencarini
Planner Coordinator
' Montgomery County Planning Department
‘ 2425 Reedie Drive, 13t floor, Wheaton, MD 20902
Katherine.mencarini@montgomeryplanning.org
p: 301.495.4549
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From: Mencarini, Katherine

Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2021 9:45 AM

To: Paul Rashid <pojr@verizon.net>

Cc: Kraut, Aaron <Aaron.Kraut@montgomerycountymd.gov>;
cindy.gibson@montgomerycountymd.gov; Kronenberg, Robert
<robert.kronenberg@montgomeryplanning.org>; Dickel, Stephanie
<Stephanie.Dickel@montgomeryplanning.org>; Hisel-McCoy, Elza <Elza.Hisel-
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Attachment |

McCoy@montgomeryplanning.org>; Seth Goldberg <sethagoldberg@gmail.com>; O'Neil, Patrick L.
<ploneil@lerchearly.com>
Subject: RE: Landon School - Process Question

Mr. Rashid,

Thank you for your questions about participating in the Planning Board review process. As a point of
clarification, Special Exceptions and Special Exception Amendments are reviewed and commented on by
the Planning Board, but the final decision for approval or denial of the Application is made by the
Hearing Examiner in the Office of the Zoning & Administrative Hearings. Following the Planning Board
Hearing, we will transmit the comments and recommendation from the Planning Board to the Hearing
Examiner no fewer than 15 days prior to the Hearing Examiner’s Public Hearing. At this point, the
Applicant does not have a set Hearing Examiner date.

Another point | would like to make is that you can send questions or provide comments to me at any
time during the process to be included in the public record. A summary of comments received and
staff’s responses will be included in the posted staff report. | recommend including Patrick O’Neil, point
of contact for the Applicant, in any correspondence. Patrick has been cc’d on this email if you need his
contact information.

The Landon School has a tentative Planning Board public hearing date on Thursday, July 15, 2021. Based
off of this date, here are the other critical milestones.

e Participation in the Public Hearing
o You can sign-up to testify online (at this time, all hearings are conducted virtually)
= The opportunity to sign up to testify is open starting 10 days prior to the Planning
Board hearing. The sign-up window will be open until noon on the day prior to the
Hearing
o If you do not sign up to testify but would like to watch/listen live here are your options:
= Watch the Planning Board meeting live online and on-demand.
= Listen live via phone to the Planning Board meeting by calling: 866-774-0898
Password: 24252020
o Written comments must be submitted no later than noon on the day before the Planning
Board Hearing date (i.e. noon on Wednesday before the Hearing on Thursday)
= Email: The Montgomery County Planning Board Chair Casey Anderson at mcp-
chair@mncppc-mc.org
= Mail: Chair Casey Anderson, Montgomery County Planning Board, 2425 Reedie
Drive, 14th Floor, Wheaton, MD 20902, or
= Fax: (301) 495-1320

If the Planning Board’s public hearing needs to be rescheduled, the relative dates in this email apply to
the scheduled Hearing Examiner date.
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Please let me know if you have any questions about the Planning Board’s Public Hearing schedule and
process.

Katie

Katherine (Katie) Mencarini
Planner Coordinator

' Montgomery County Planning Department

‘ 2425 Reedie Drive, 13" floor, Wheaton, MD 20902
Katherine.mencarini@montgomeryplanning.or

p: 301.495.4549
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From: Paul Rashid <pojr@verizon.net>

Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2021 8:43 AM

To: Mencarini, Katherine <katherine.mencarini@montgomeryplanning.org>
Cc: Kraut, Aaron <Aaron.Kraut@montgomerycountymd.gov>;
cindy.gibson@montgomerycountymd.gov; Kronenberg, Robert

<robert.kronenberg@montgomeryplanning.org>; Dickel, Stephanie
<Stephanie.Dickel@montgomeryplanning.org>; Hisel-McCoy, Elza <elza.hisel-
mccoy@montgomeryplanning.org>; Seth Goldberg <sethagoldber mail.com>

Subject: Landon School - Process Question

[EXTERNAL EMAIL] Exercise caution when opening attachments, clicking links, or
responding.

All,

| just wanted to check in with you to understand the timeline for the process, and if there are any
deadlines for the neighborhood input. We are working with Landon on several issues and want to make
sure we are keeping to your schedules. Please let me know the process, so | better understand our
responsibility.

| also copied Seth Goldberg, as he and | are working on this together for Woodhaven.

Again, thanks for all your help on this.

Paul
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From: Mencarini, Katherine

To: Paul Rashid

Cc: Kraut, Aaron; cindy.gibson@montgomerycountymd.gov; Kronenberg, Robert; Dickel, Stephanie; Hisel-McCoy, Elza
Subject: RE: Landon School

Date: Monday, April 19, 2021 1:54:00 PM
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Mr. Rashid,

Thank you for reaching out with your concern about a potentially new access point on Whittier Boulevard. |
reached out to our environmental review planner, Tsaiquan Gatling (cc’d on this email) and this was his
response:

As shown on the Approved NRI, there is forest as well as a stream and associated stream buffer. Both of
these environmental features are high priority for retention under the Forest Conservation Regulations
(citation: 22A.00.01.07 - Priorities for Forest Stand Retention). There are also sensitive soils within the forest
(16D soil — Brinklow Silt Loam, classified as highly erodible in the Montgomery County Environmental
Guidelines). Further, the property lies within the Bethesda Chevy-Chase Master Plan which has numerous
recommendations for the preservation of mature trees and environmentally sensitive elements. In instances
such as this, where we have so many overlapping environmentally sensitive features, Staff has not been
supportive of development which seeks to disturb or impact these areas of concern.

Please contact Tsaiquan and me if you have further questions about this assessment.

Additionally, my understanding of the County Code is that a proposal of a new access point for the school
would require an application for an Amendment to the Special Exception, and would require approval from
the Board of Appeals/Hearing Examiner.

Sincerely,
Katie

Katherine (Katie) Mencarini
Planner Coordinator
' Montgomery County Planning Department
‘ 2425 Reedie Drive, 13 floor, Wheaton, MD 20902
Katherine.mencarini@montgomeryplanning.org
p: 301.495.4549
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From: Paul Rashid <pojr@verizon.net>

Sent: Friday, April 16, 2021 11:38 AM

To: Hisel-McCoy, Elza <elza.hisel-mccoy@montgomeryplanning.org>

Cc: Kraut, Aaron <Aaron.Kraut@montgomerycountymd.gov>; cindy.gibson@montgomerycountymd.gov;
Kronenberg, Robert <robert.kronenberg@montgomeryplanning.org>; Dickel, Stephanie
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<Stephanie.Dickel@montgomeryplanning.org>; Mencarini, Katherine
<katherine.mencarini@montgomeryplanning.org>
Subject: Re: Landon School

[EXTERNAL EMAIL] Exercise caution when opening attachments, clicking links, or
responding.

Elza/All,

Landon has scheduled a virtual meeting for next Tuesday the 20th. Some of the neighbors have a concern
that there is a hidden goal by Landon to eventually add an entrance onto the lower section of Whittier Blvd.
They believe that the expansion of the perimeter road is the first step and that eventually Landon will want
an entrance there for “safety” reasons. My understanding from when | purchased my house was that they
could not do that due to the creek and designated wetlands of the tree buffer area between them and
Whittier blvd. Can you confirm that to put people at ease?

Thanks for all your help in this matter.
Paul

On Mar 31, 2021, at 11:15 AM, Hisel-McCoy, Elza <elza.hisel-
mccoy@montgomeryplanning.org> wrote:

Good day Mr. Rashid,

| hope this finds you well. Aaron Kraut from Councilmember Friedson’s office shared with me
last week your inquiry regarding the Landon School. Please forgive my delay in responding.
Gratefully, we are very busy! The Planning Board hearing has been rescheduled from March to
May. If you have not already found them, the application materials are online
atwww.montgomeryplanning.org/development under application designation S686D, Landon

School.

Regarding community outreach, the applicant’s Statement of Case says that the Landon School
is in compliance with all of the previous binding elements/conditions of approval except this
one:

“There is no longer a viable neighborhood liaison committee. Following the 2002 Modification,
the neighborhood’s heightened interest in school activities has waned and the People’s Counsel
position was eliminated. Jim Neil, the Head of School attempted to resurrect the committee by
reaching out several times to all of the surrounding neighborhood associations registered in
Park and Planning’s database; however there were not responses to these overtures.”

Our understanding is that he was able to reach 8 adjoining neighbors and held a virtual meeting
with representatives of Kenwood Park and Burning Tree Village neighborhood.

We would appreciate your perspective on this and any other issue regarding the application.
Katie Mencarini on our staff is the lead reviewer and is copied above. She is happy to work with
you. We have also forwarded your inquiry to the applicant’s team so they are aware of your
concerns as well.
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Sincerely,

Elza

<image002.png>

Elza Hisel-McCoy (he/him/his)
Chief, DownCounty Planning

Montgomery County Planning Department
2425 Reedie Drive, 13" Floor

Wheaton, MD 20902
elza.hisel-mccoy@montgomeryplanning.or,
301.495.2115
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